
East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee          Page 1 of 3 
March 30, 2017 

 

 
 

MEETING OF THE EAST BAY BUS RAPID TRANSIT  
POLICY STEERING COMMITTEE 

 
The meeting will convene in the Lobby of the General Offices for a tour of the BRT 

Bus.  The remainder of the meeting will follow in the 2nd Floor Board Room. 
 

Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District 
General Offices 

1600 Franklin Street 
2nd Floor Board Room 

Oakland, CA 94612 
 

Thursday, March 30, 2017 
2:00 p.m. 

 

Rules for Public Comment:   
Speakers wishing to address the Committee should 
complete a Speaker’s Form and submit it to the 
District Secretary. Speakers wishing to address 
subjects not listed on this agenda will be invited to 
speak under the "PUBLIC COMMENTS" section of 
the agenda. Speakers wishing to address a specific 
agenda item will be invited to address the 
Committee at the time the item is being 
considered. All speakers should limit their 
comments to two (2) minutes. Speakers using a 
translator will be allotted twice the allotted time. 
 
Individuals who wish to present more detailed 
information are encouraged to submit comments in 
writing.  Written comments are made part of the 
written record for meetings and, as such, are 
available for public inspection. 
 
Availability of Agenda Related Materials:  Written 
agenda related materials for all regular meetings 
are available to the public 72 hours prior to the 
meeting or at the time the materials are distributed 
to a majority of the Committee.  
 
Written materials presented at a meeting by staff 
or a member of the Committee will be available to 
the public at that time, or after the meeting if 
supplied by an outside party. Agenda related 
materials are available on the District’s website or 
by contacting the District Secretary. 

 

  Order of Agenda Items:   
The Committee may discuss any item on the agenda 
and in any order.   

 
Electronic Devices:  
All electronic devices shall be placed on mute, vibrate 
or silent mode during the meeting (Dist. Ord. 12) 
 
Scented Products: Please refrain from wearing 
scented products as there may be attendees 
susceptible to environmental illnesses. 
 
Accessible Public Meetings:  
Meetings of the Committee are accessible to 
individuals in wheelchairs. The Board room is 
equipped with assistive listening devices for 
individuals with a hearing impairment. Written 
materials in appropriate alternative formats or 
disability related modification/accommodation must 
be made three business days in advance of the 
meeting to help ensure availability.  Subject to 
availability, sign language and foreign language 
interpreters will be provided upon request with 72-
hour notice.   
 
Contact Information:   
Please direct requests for disability-related 
modification or accommodation and/or interpreter 
services to Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary, 1600 
Franklin Street, Oakland, California, 94612 or call 
(510) 891-7201.   



East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee          Page 2 of 3 
March 30, 2017 

Meeting of the East Bay Bus Rapid Transit  
Policy Steering Committee  
 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday, March 30, 2017 
2:00 p.m. 
2nd Floor Board Room 
1600 Franklin Street 
Oakland, CA 94612 

 
 

 
 
 

 
PSC Members: 

AC Transit: 
President Elsa Ortiz, Chair 
Director Greg Harper 
Director H. E. Christian Peeples 

Alameda County (Ex Officio): 
Supervisor Nate Miley 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission/Caltrans: 
District Director Bijan Sartipi  
 

 

City of Oakland: 
Council Member Rebecca Kaplan 
Council Member Noel Gallo 
 
City of San Leandro: 
Mayor Pauline Cutter  
Council Member Corina Lopez 
 

 

The meeting will convene in the Lobby of the General Offices at  
2:00 p.m. for a Tour of the BRT Bus.  The Tour will conclude by 2:15 p.m. The remainder of the 

meeting will follow in the 2nd Floor Board Room. 
 

1. Roll Call 
 
2. Public Comment for items not on the agenda (two minutes are allowed for each speaker) 

 
3. Consider approving the BRT Policy Steering Committee minutes of September 15, 2016. 

 
4. Chair’s Report on pertinent actions of the AC Transit Board of Directors. 

 
5. BRT Project Updates: 

 
a. Tour of the BRT bus [Requested by Councilmember Kaplan – 9/15/16] 
b. Progress update on major construction activity. 
c. Update on program funding and projected costs [Requested by Director Harper – 

3/10/16]  
d. Update on the project schedule. [Requested by Council Member Gallo – 3/10/16]   
e. BRT community outreach. 
f. Branding/sponsorship update. 

 
6. Schedule date and time of next meeting. 

 
7. Future Agenda Items/Review List of Pending Items. 

 
8. Adjournment  
 
 



East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee          Page 3 of 3 
March 30, 2017 

Pending List of Future Agenda Items: 
 Discussion regarding fare payment, including the expansion of Clipper card availability 

throughout the neighborhoods by adding more vendors and outreach to major employers 
along the corridor to participate in the EasyPass Program with the initiation of the service.  
[Requested by Council Member Kaplan – 9/3/15, 11/12/15, 3/10/16, 5/12/16] 
 





MOTION: KAPLAN/LOPEZ to approve the minutes as presented
following vote:

The motion carried by the

AYES:5: Kaplan, Lopez, Cutter, Harper, Ortiz
ABSENT:4: Miley, Sartipi, Gallo, Young

4. Chair's Report on pertinent actions of the AC Transit Board of Directors

Chair Ortiz reported on the following

The groundbreaking ceremony for the BRT Project held on August 26, 2016 with
Secretary of Transportation Foxx and Congresswoman Barbara Lee in attendance;
Award of new Construction Management and Community Outreach and Public
Engagement services contracts to CH2M Hilland L. Luster & Associates respectively;
Field work underway by the OC Jones team, including high priority utility potholing,
monument surveying, traffic signal foundation potholing, and preparation of
submittals and permit applications;
Relocation of utilities to clear the way for construction of the station platforms and
roadway improvements anticipated to start in November, with relocation of EBMUD
waterlines in October; and
Successful resolution of the cost liability and pavement depth issues that provided
for the completion of the EBMUD relocation work.

5. BRT Project Updates

[The Powerpoint presentation on the BRT project update is incorporated into the fife by
reference. I

A. East Bay MUD utility relocation update. [Requested by Council Member Lopez
5/12/16]

Director of Capital Projects Ramakrishna Pochiraju reported that, with the support of
Caltrans and the Cities of San Leandro and Oakland, a second amended agreement had
been reached with EBMUD with respect to pavement depth with no additional increase

in costs. He added, however, that a major issue was liability, noting that EBMUD would
be 100% liable for the cost of all relocation work on the state highway. For non-state
highway areas(Downtown Oakland to 42" Avenue), AC Transit would be responsible for
the cost to relocate water mains. He added that if AC Transit's construction activities
damage a water main, the delays and damages are the responsibility of AC Transit. The
executed amendment was sent to Caltrans for right-of-way certification.

Director Harper noted that the contractor would also be liable for water main damage
Mr. Pochiraju agreed, but pointed out that the reduced pavement depth would also
mitigate the risk of any water main damage.

East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee

September 15, 2016
Page 2 of 5



B Information on projected costs. [Requested by Director Harper 3/10/16]

Director of BRT David Wilkins reported on project costs, noting that the graph presented
in the agenda packet was representative of what the Federal Transportation
Administration had requested of the District. He added that $60 million of the $171
million for the project had been spent thus far and that given the baseline costs versus
actual costs to date, the project would have been further along at this point in time if
more money had been spent. Director Harper observed that the chart depicted
schedule issues.

Vice President Ortiz asked if revenue service would begin in 2018 and what this would
cost the District. Mr. Wilkins responded that the project costs reflect what staff
anticipates would be construction completion in early 2018. He added that he would
talk more about the schedule under the next agenda item.

C. Update on the project construction schedule. [Requested by Council Member Gallo
3/10/16]

Director of BRT David Wilkins reported on the construction schedule, noting that the
dates provided represented contractual milestones in the project. He added that staff is
currently working with the contractor on ways to accelerate the work in order to deliver
the service in late 2017 in accordance with the SmallStarts Grant.

Director Harper asked if staff was comfortable with a $171 million project cost given the
lapses in the schedule. Notwithstanding any unforeseen conditions, Mr. Wilkins advised
that staff was confident with the $171 million cost figure, but noted that the major cost
associated with a time extension would be for professional services and staff has
adjusted the budget to accommodate the additional costs through contingency. He also

thought that there may be some Cap & Trade funds available for the project, which
would increase contingency but have yet to be allocated. Director Harper cautioned
against waiting too long to ask for more money, noting that it would be easier to get it
sooner rather than later.

Vice President Ortiz reiterated that because money for the project was very tight and
additional funding was difficult to obtain, there was no room for extra requests that
would result in additional expenditures. Mr. Wilkins concurred, saying that the amount
of unallocated contingency for the project was very limited and would ultimately be
used for construction cost contingencies and professional services.

Councilmember Kaplan inquired as to why landscaping would be done at the end of the
project. Mr. Wilkins advised that there is a three-year establishment period for
landscaping and in order to manage survival and upkeep, it is proposed that all
landscaping be planted at the same time.

East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee
September 15, 2016

Page 3 of 5



D. Information on construction signage. [Requested by Council Member Kaplan
9/3/15, 3/10/16]

Director of BRT David Wilkins gave an overview of construction and directional signage
for the curbside and median stations. He also discussed the process of mothballing the
built stations and provided examples of what it would look like.

Councilmember Kaplan asked if the signage would appear on all of the mothball
stations, if it would be large enough to see from across the street, and who would keep
it clean. Mr. Wilkins advised that the signage would be on all stations, would be very
visible, and that the contractor would be responsible for keep the area clean. Any signs
applied by AC Transit would be replaced by AC Transit if damaged. Councilmember
Kaplan suggested that the signs include a website and phone number in a font large
enough for people to see it. Vice President Ortiz asked staff to make sure signs are
multi-lingual.

Councilmember Kaplan asked if the words "bus only lane" would be painted on the
street and at what point it would be painted on. Mr. Wilkins advised that all of the
repaving and striping would be done at the end of the project.

E. Update on the City of Oakland Business Sustainability Program.[Requested by Council
Member Kap[an -- 5/12/16]

This topic was pulled off the agenda

F. BRT community outreach

External Aff airs Representative Claudia Burgos gave an overview of outreach efforts
pertaining to construction notifications, including the two-week advance notification
and 72-hour door hanger notices. She further advised that potholing notifications were
hand-delivered a week in advance of the start of pre-construction activities.
Notifications were recently distributed in San Leandro for upcoming EBMUD work.

Councilmember Lopez commented that community outreach needed to be more
comprehensive in terms of communications with City staff and elected officials. She
cited an example whereby construction work in San Leandro had been done without
encroachment permits and without staff being aware that there were significant
changes in the work. She further advised that there had been all night construction for
a whole week on residential streets without the City's knowledge. Ms. Burgos recalled
that the construction work in question was performed by PG&E for the project and staff
had met with PG&E's outreach team to ensure better coordination of construction
activities. Councilmember Lopez commented that it was important to communicate
significant changes in advance in order to respond and direct the public accordingly.
She also advised that any major changes in the construction schedule come directly to
the mayor or the Councilmember Lopez herself.

East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee
September 1S, 2016

Page 4 of S



Mr. Wilkins advised that staff was aware of the concerns and was working with the cities
and the utilities to enhance communications involving the project. He added that AC
Transit would do its best to ensure that communication between the parties was better
coordinated. Councilmember Lopez was appreciative of staff's efforts.

G. Branding/sponsorship update

AC Transit Marketing Department representative Nichele Laynes provided an update on
branding and sponsorship activities. She addressed questions regarding the paint
scheme for the BRT vehicles and the community art project.

6. Schedule date and time of next meeting

The next meeting willbe scheduled at a later date

7. Future Agenda Items/Review List of Pending Items

Councilmember Kaplan requested that the PSC receive a tour of the BRT training bus in
conjunction with a future PSC meeting

Councilmember Kaplan requested copies of a BRT informational brochure that can be
distributed to constituents.

Mayor Cutter requested that staff forward to her the most recent parking displacement and
signal placement drawings for San Leandro. [Mr. Wilkins advised that staff would assemble
the information and forward it to the City.]

Director Harper requested that the AC Transit Board receive a report on what alterations
may be required at Division 4 to accommodate the BRT fleet.

8. Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting adjourned at
3:08p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda A. Nemeroff
District Secretary

East Bay BRT Policy Steering Committee
September 1S, 2016

Page 5 of 5











































Downtown Oakland to San Leandro 
International Blvd to East 14th St 

Recap and Adjourn   
 

 
 

 
 

21 

Final Thoughts? 
Date for Next Policy Steering Committee Meeting 


	03-30-17 PSC Agenda-1
	09-15-16 PSC Minutes
	BRT Update 3-30-17
	Revised Presentation 3-29-17.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Agenda 
	Progress Update 
	Progress Update (Con’t.)
	Progress Update (Con’t.)
	Program Funding
	Projected Program Costs
	Projected Program Costs (Con’t)
	Project Construction Schedule
	Project Construction (Con’t.)
	Contract Milestone Schedule
	Contract Milestone Schedule
		Program Schedule
	Community Outreach Update
	�  Community Outreach Update (Cont’d) �    Stakeholder and Merchant Meetings & Events:  September 2016 – March 2017 
	  Community Outreach Update (Cont’d) �   Stakeholder and Merchant Meetings & Events:  September 2016 – March 2017 (Con’t)
	Community Outreach Update (Cont’d) �Stakeholder and Merchant Meetings & Events:  September 2016 – March 2017 (Con’t)
	Slide Number 18
	Branding / Sponsorship Update 
	6 Month Look Ahead – Where we Expect to be end of 3rd Quarter 2017
	Recap and Adjourn  



<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



